
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Item # AGENDA 


1. Call to Order
OLD BUSINESS 


2. Discussion and possible action on the Alcohol Committee Resolution (002)
3. Discussion of bullying/harassment ordinance Sec. 50-15


NEW BUSINESS 


4. Communications
5. Approval of the October 27, 2021 Public Safety Committee Minutes
6. O--2021Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating 


Subsection (88) relating to No Parking Anytime of both sides of Jackson Street - west
7. Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to Amend Section 70-176 to


Designate Oak Opening Drive as a Through Street
8. Citizen’s concerns about speeding and excessive vehicle noise in Stoughton
9. Speed Data Analysis of Kings Lynn north of Chapin
10. Review how to handle Regular licenses and 60 day not doing business ordinances
11. Discussion and possible action on a proposal to contract with Lexis Nexis for eCommerce of traffic 


crash reports.
12. Discussion and possible action on outdoor storage enforcement
13. Discussion and possible action on PSC involvement with resolve of the staffing issue.


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: 


14. Adjournment


cc. Mayor Swadley, Department Heads, Council, Attorney Matt Dregne, Library Clerical Asst., Receptionists, Stoughton Newspapers/Wisc State Journal    *Note: An
expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Council. Meeting may close per Statutes 19.85 (1)(b)to consider the licensing of a person, then reopen for regular
course of business.


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Public Safety Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


Meeting of 
the:  


Date /Time: 
Location: 


Members: 


PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Wednesday, January 12, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. 
The meeting of the Public Safety Committee will be conducted virtually due to 
COVID-19. You can join the Zoom meeting from your computer, tablet, or 
smartphone:  
https://zoom.us/j/99790201801?pwd=RnF0d2tYeGYvRlFmdllLRUtZajEzUT09 
Meeting ID: 997 9020 1801 
Passcode: 362591 


Greg Jenson (Chair), Joyce Tikalsky, Jean Ligocki, Ozzie Doom, Tricia Suess 
Charleston, Eric Quam and Tim Swadley (ex-officio) 



https://zoom.us/j/99790201801?pwd=RnF0d2tYeGYvRlFmdllLRUtZajEzUT09





One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,99790201801#,,,,*362591# US (New York) 
+13017158592,,99790201801#,,,,*362591# US (Washington DC) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
Meeting ID: 997 9020 1801 
Passcode: 362591 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aenTDfHKRe 
 
 



https://zoom.us/u/aenTDfHKRe






PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, October 27, 2021 
Virtual  


Present:  Chair, Greg Jenson, Alderpersons Ozzie Doom, Jean Ligocki, Joyce Tikalsky, 
Members; Tricia Suess Charleston, Staff; Mayor Swadley, and Police Chief Greg Leck.  


Excused: none 


Guests:  Teressa Pellett. 


Call to Order:  Chair Jenson called the meeting to order at 6:24 p.m.   


Old Business:  


Pellett said that a draft Resolution is prepared but is not in the packet for discussion.  Mayor 
Swadley presented the draft and members and will email them to PSC members.   


Tabled to next meeting.  


Communications:  Chief Leck gave a brief update regarding that the new Speed Board still 
has not arrived.  Updated the committee on Monday’s High School lockdown incident.  


New Business 


4. Minutes of 9-23-21:  Moved by Doom 2nd by: Basco, to approve the minutes of 
9-23-21.                                   Motion carried: 5-0  


5. Discussion and possible action of a change of agent for the Stoughton 
Kroger/Roundy’s Supermarket. 


Leck presented the request for change of agent for the Stoughton 
Krogers/Roundy’s.   


Motion by Tikalsky, 2nd By Doom to recommend approval to the council 
contingent on the application be notarized.  Motion carried 5-0 


6. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (50) regarding No 
Parking on portions of Ridge Street 


Motion by Doom, 2nd by Tikalsky to recommend approval to council.  Motion 
carried 5-0 


7. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (84) regarding No Parking on 
portions of Ridge Street. 


Motion by Tikalsky: recommend to Council, 2nd by Doom.  Motion carried 5-0 


8. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (85) regarding No 
Parking on portions of N. Madison Street. 


Motion by: Doom 2nd by Basco to recommend to Council. Motion carried 5-0 
 
 







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes 
September 28, 2011 
Page 2 
 


9. Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (86) regarding No 
Parking on portions of Hill Street. 


Motion by Tikalsky, 2nd by Basco to recommend approval to Council 


Motion carried 5-0 


10.  Discussion and possible action on amending Section 70-176 (87) regarding No 
Parking on portions of Hill Street. 


Motion by: Doom, 2nd by: Tikalsky to recommend approval to Council 


Motion carried 5-0 


11.  Discussion of Bullying/Harassment Ordinance Sec. 50-15 


Discussion on how to inform public of this ordinance. Jenson stated that people are 
just not aware of ordinance.  Tikalsky stated that she has also heard that there were 
incidents that she was aware of, especially regarding fears of retaliation.  Chief Leck 
advised that the ordinance has not been used since it was adopted and that it would 
be a good idea to put it on the website or publicize it more.  


Leck stated that he will work getting the Bullying Ordinance up on the website so 
that people are aware of it.  Maybe through that messaging it will help people know 
that they is a City Ordinance.  Jenson added that we can circle back to this next 
month and check the progress.   


12.  Discussion and possible action on transfer of Pizza Hut Class B license to new 
location. 
 
Leck explained that Pizza Hut is moving to their new location on 11-1-21 and that this 
transfer of premises needs to be approved to change the license location.  Leck 
added that City Clerk Christen will be approving a Provisional License that will cover 
the location until the City Council can approve on 11-9-21.   


Motion by: Tikalsky, 2nd by Doom to recommend to council. 


Motion carried 5-0 
               
 
Future meetings topics; Bullying Ordinance review, Continue Liquor License process, EOC & 
Emergency Plan, Curbside pickup pilot.  


Moved by Tikalsky, 2nd By Basco to adjourn at 6:54 p.m.  Carried unanimously.   


 


Respectfully Submitted,  
Greg Leck, Chief of Police 





		PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (88) relating to 
No Parking Anytime on both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 
Committee Action:    


Public Safety committee recommends  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O- -2021 Date 
Introduced:  


 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (82) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 
         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 
actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is 
attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid 
obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:  


(88) On both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 
 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 
Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Chapter 70-176 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code; by creating subsection (88) relating to 


No Parking Anytime on both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 


Committee Action:    


Public Safety committee recommends  


Fiscal Impact:       N/A 


File Number: O- -2021 Date 


Introduced:  


 


 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1. Sec. 70-176 (82) of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances is created as follows:  


 


         Sec. 70-176. - Parking prohibited at all times. 


No person shall park, stop or leave standing any vehicle, except temporarily for the purpose of and while 


actually engaged in loading or unloading or in receiving or discharging passengers and while the vehicle is 


attended by a licensed operator so that it may be moved promptly in case of an emergency or to avoid 


obstruction of traffic, upon any of the following highways or parts of highways:  


(88) On both side of Jackson Street from Hwy 51 west to the City Limits. 


 


 


 


Section 2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 


 


Dates 


 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 








From: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>  
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 2:44 PM 
To: Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; 
Regina Hirsch <RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: Re: Concerns about Speeding and Excessive Vehicle Noise in Stoughton 


Chief Leck, 


First, I want to thank you and your staff for all you do for the Stoughton community.  I 
appreciate you adding this to your Patrol sheet as a concern.  I also realize that this has 
become a larger issue, as evidenced in this case, that causes a concern overall.  And, the 
challenges to support an adequate staff in meeting these challenges.  


I think collecting the data in advance of the winter season will be valuable as a first step in 
making an assessment.  As noted in my initial email, it seems that other communities in the 
Madison area are being proactive with electronic monitoring signs that are attached to the 
speed limit signs to display what a vehicle's travel speed.  Moreover, there seems to be only a 
few signs in this area to state what the speed limit is (although this should be somewhat 
intuitive knowing you are traveling in a residential neighborhood).  


Thanks again for your consideration and service to the community, 


Best regards,  


Paul


Paul Rosowski M.S., R.Ph. 
924 Kings Lynn Road 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
P: 608-843-1483 


From: Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 2:31 PM 
To: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>; Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 



mailto:pgrosows@wisc.edu

mailto:GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:pgrosows@wisc.edu

mailto:GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us





Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; 
Regina Hirsch <RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: RE: Concerns about Speeding and Excessive Vehicle Noise in Stoughton  


Mr. Rosowski, 


Just to follow up on Alder Jenson’s response.  Thank you for bringing this concern to our attention.  I 
have placed the speeding concerns on our Directed Patrol sheet for the officers to follow up on as time 
permits.  Just so you are aware, we routinely only have 2 officers on duty per shift and the high traffic 
times usually coincide with high call volume times.  This makes it difficult to stay ahead of the growing 
traffic problems throughout the City.  As you and others are observing traffic issues (especially speeding) 
have increased significantly all over including here in Stoughton.  We will do what we can to address the 
problem. 


Additionally, due to the winter weather not being quite here yet, we will be placing our traffic counter 
device on Kings Lynn to get some hard data that will help us analyze the problem and identify strategies 
to help address it.  I will share this data with you when it is completed.  Usually, we try to get a minimum 
of a weeks’ worth of data to get a clearer picture of the traffic patterns. 


Again, thank you for the email and we will keep you posted. 


Gregory W. Leck 
Chief of Police 
Stoughton Police Department 
321 S. Fourth Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
gleck@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
608-873-3374 work
FBINA Session 212


From: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>  
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 1:57 PM 
To: Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee 
Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Regina Hirsch <RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: Re: Concerns about Speeding and Excessive Vehicle Noise in Stoughton 


Greg (and other leaders in the Stoughton community), 


Thanks for taking the time to review my e-mail and for your prompt follow-up on this matter. 


Please let me know if there is anything else you need from me. 


Best regards,  



mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:gleck@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:pgrosows@wisc.edu

mailto:GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us





Paul


Paul Rosowski M.S., R.Ph. 
924 Kings Lynn Road 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
P: 608-843-1483 


From: Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 12:41 PM 
To: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu> 
Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee 
Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Regina Hirsch <RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: RE: Concerns about Speeding and Excessive Vehicle Noise in Stoughton  


Paul, thank you for the detailed email regarding your concerns. I chair the Public Safety 
Committee and will make sure that Chief Leck is made aware of your concerns. I will add an 
agenda item to our next P/S meeting to discuss possible actions we can take. 


Sent from my U.S.Cellular© Smartphone 


-------- Original message -------- 
From: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>  
Date: 11/28/21 2:32 PM (GMT-06:00)  
To: City Council <Council@ci.stoughton.wi.us>  
Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>  
Subject: Concerns about Speeding and Excessive Vehicle Noise in Stoughton 


Dear City Council members, 


I hope this email finds you and your families safe and well this fall. My wife and I have lived in 
Stoughton 25 years, we raised two children here and thoroughly enjoy it.  We have watched the 
community grow, are active members in it, and have watched it become more diverse and 
vibrant community in many good ways. Unfortunately, some issues have surfaced recently that 
give me pause for concern and that I would like to share with you. 


First, in September, I brought to the attention of my local alderpersons (via phone calls) my 
concern regarding the speeding and reckless driving that was occurring on Kings Lynn and Roby 
Roads (we live at 924 Kings Lynn Road).  This is especially apparent during the morning "rush 
hour' period and after 3:30PM or so in the afternoon when people are returning from work or 
leaving the high school. The designated speed limit for these roads is 25 mph, it is rarely 



mailto:GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:pgrosows@wisc.edu

mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:CChristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:RHirsch@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:pgrosows@wisc.edu

mailto:Council@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us





obeyed, and I believe drivers often exceed this limit by 10 - 20 mph if not more.  Most 
concerning is watching some vehicles speed past these areas where children are waiting for 
their school buses or walking to school in the morning and are distracted by their cell phones 
or other devices. I often walk past the bus stop at the corner of Roby Road and Virgin Lake 
Drive around 7:10am, as an example, and have witnessed several close calls of potential 
accidents because of this issue.  It's only a matter of time before someone is struck by a vehicle 
or a significant accident occurs.  As concerned member of the community, I hope that we can 
avoid that from happening by taking the appropriate action in advance.    


To date, no formal action has been taken to better monitor the speed limit on the roads.  I 
would ask the Council Members consider taking positive action to limit excess speeding on 
these roads (i.e., permanent speed limit signs that display a vehicle's speed [not just a 
temporary sign], increased speed limit enforcement, or perhaps even "speed bumps," as a 
more drastic effort to curb this issue). I also would encourage the Council commission a study 
on several neighborhood areas in Stoughton to determine if this problem is more pervasive and 
bring greater awareness on it if it is. Let’s keep Stoughton a safe and enjoyable place to live.  To 
me, getting somewhere 5-10 minutes early is not worth the risk of having child or someone else 
get severely injured or worse because of this issue.   


A second issue is the level of noise emitted by several select motor vehicles traveling in this 
area that are modified from their original form.  It has become readily apparent that there a 
several vehicles in our local neighborhood that have modified their original equipment making 
them significantly louder, noise polluting and even to the point of being awakening, especially 
between the hours of 10pm and 6am. Wisconsin Statute 347.39 (2) states specifically:  


"No person shall modify the exhaust system of any such motor vehicle in a manner which will 
amplify or increase the noise emitted by the motor of such vehicle above that emitted by the 
muffler originally installed on the vehicle, and such original muffler shall comply with all the 
requirements of this section."   


Like the issue I cited above, it has become, and continues to be an ongoing problem.  I am 
interested in knowing if there have been other complaints have been received about this issue 
or if any citations have been issued within the last 12 months in Stoughton about this 
problem.   


I appreciate the Council's willingness to consider these issues and consider taking positive 
action against them to support a safe and vibrant Stoughton community.  


Please feel free to contact me with any questions you have. 


Thank you for your consideration,  


Paul







  
Paul Rosowski M.S., R.Ph. 
924 Kings Lynn Road 
Stoughton, WI  53589 
 





		From: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>  Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 2:44 PM To: Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughto...

		From: Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 2:31 PM To: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>; Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughton...

		From: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>  Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 1:57 PM To: Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughto...

		From: Greg Jenson <GJenson@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Sent: Monday, November 29, 2021 12:41 PM To: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu> Cc: Tim Swadley <TSwadley@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Greg Leck <GLeck@ci.stoughton.wi.us>; Candee Christen <CChristen@ci.stoughto...

		From: PAUL G ROSOWSKI <pgrosows@wisc.edu>






Default Report Title
Use Preferences to Define Titles


SPEED DATA ANALYSIS







 





		09A Kings Lynn north of Chapin - Speed Data Analysis 11-30-21 to 12-7-21 (2)

		09B Traffic counts over 40 Kings Lynn Dec 2021






• Sec. 14-41. - License cancellation. 


SHARE LINK TO SECTIONPRINT SECTIONDOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONSEMAIL 
SECTIONCOMPARE VERSIONS 


If a license issued under this article is not used within 60 days after it is granted, or its usage 
is discontinued for a period of 60 days or more, such nonuse shall be grounds for cancellation 
of the license in accordance with the provisions of this article. No refund shall be made of any 
part of the license fee if any license is canceled. 


(Code 1986, § 12.03(9); Ord. No. 0-27-07, § 1, 8-28-2007; Ord. No. 0-24-08, § 1, 10-28-2008; 
Ord. No. 0-15-2011, 10-25-2011) 


 



https://library.municode.com/

https://library.municode.com/

https://library.municode.com/

https://library.municode.com/

https://library.municode.com/

https://library.municode.com/






 


 
Confidential and Proprietary Information of LexisNexis 
eCommerce Order Q1.v1.21  Page 1 of 2 


Order No. 1 
eCommerce Services 


 
This Order No. 1 (“Order”) is entered into this _______ day of ___________________, 20__ (“Order Effective Date”) 


between Stoughton Police Department ("Agency") and LexisNexis Coplogic Solutions Inc. ("Provider") and subject to the terms 
and conditions of the Law Enforcement Agreement effective _____________________, 20__ (“Agreement”) between the 
Parties.   


 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS. All of the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement shall remain in full force and 


effect and shall apply to the extent applicable to this Order except as expressly modified herein.  To the extent that 
the terms and conditions of this Order are in conflict with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, or any other 
incorporated item, this Order shall control.  Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the same meaning 
as set forth in the Agreement. 


 
2. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Provider, as part of its business, has developed web based portal(s) to distribute Reports 


to Authorized Requestors and other authorized entities online.  In exchange for the Services provided to Agency, 
Agency agrees that Provider shall have the sole and exclusive right to sell the Agency’s crash reports online and to 
distribute data extracted from the Reports via Provider’s eCommerce portal(s), LexisNexis® BuyCrash™, or its 
successor(s). Agency retains the rights to fulfill requests for Reports made pursuant to state freedom of information 
laws. 


 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Provider agrees to provide the following Services to Agency subject to the provisions of this 


Order.  Except as provided in Section 2.2 of the Agreement, any change to the Services as set forth in this Order that 
occur after the Order Effective Date must be made by amendment to this Order, signed by both Parties.  Provider will 
provide the following Services subject to Agency’s technology capabilities, processes, and work-flow functionality: 


 
3.1. Access to an online agency administration portal to view Reports, generate analytics, and obtain 


information related to Agency’s Reports. 
3.2. Establish a communication protocol to electronically or manually transfer Reports in a timely manner from 


Agency to Provider. 
3.3. Provide Report distribution services as set forth in Section 5 of the Agreement.  
3.4. Pursuant to Section 2.1 of the Agreement, Agency agrees that it shall not use the Services for marketing 


or commercial solicitation purposes.  
3.5. Subject to Section 5.1 of the Agreement, Agency agrees to allow access to Agency’s Reports by 


Participating Agencies and, in return, shall receive access to Participating Agencies’ Reports. Agency 
agrees that it shall use Participating Agency Reports strictly for investigative and/or law enforcement 
purposes only.  


3.6. As provided by Section 7.1 of the Agreement, Agency acknowledges that certain Services provided under 
this Order may include the provision of certain personal information data obtained from the state 
Department of Motor Vehicles (“DMV Data”) and that such DMV Data may be governed by the Federal 
Driver’s Privacy Protection Act, (18 U.S.C. § 2721 et seq.) and related state laws (collectively, the “DPPA”), 
and that Agency is required to comply with the DPPA, as applicable. Agency certifies it has a permissible 
use under the DPPA to use and/or obtain such information and Agency further certifies it will use such 
information obtained from Services only for the permissible purpose selected below or for the purpose 
indicated by Agency electronically while using the Services, which purpose will apply to searches 
performed during such electronic session. 


 
Please check one below (required):  
 


 1. No permissible use. 
 2. Use by a government agency, but only in carrying out its functions.  


 







Confidential and Proprietary Information of LexisNexis 
eCommerce Order Q1.v1.21 DA10182021   
  Page 2 of 2 
 


3.7. Other Services: _________________________________________ 
 


4. TERM AND TERMINATION.  This Order shall commence upon the Order Effective Date and shall continue for an initial 
term of thirty six (36) months (“Initial Term”), whereupon this Order shall automatically renew for additional twelve 
(12) month periods (“Renewal Term”) unless either Party provides written notice to the other Party, at least sixty (60) 
days prior to the expiration of the Renewal Term.   


 
5. FEES. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, the Agency Fee is write out agency fee ex: Five Dollars and 00/100) 


($write out agency fee in decimal ex: $5.00).  There shall be no fee to Agency for the Services. 
 


5.1. For the avoidance of doubt, no Agency Fee will be paid with respect to the following:  
a) When an Affiliate of Provider has paid an Agency Fee to acquire a Report for an Authorized Requestor 


and such Affiliate later resells that Report from its inventory of previously purchased Reports to 
another Authorized Requestor; or 


b) When one or more components of a Report (e.g., VIN number) is provided to an Authorized Requestor 
or an Affiliate of Provider by Provider rather than the entirety of the Report being provided; or 


c) When a Report is acquired by an Affiliate of Provider from a source other than the eCommerce portal 
set forth on the applicable Order; or 


d) When a fee is not charged to an Authorized Requestor for the Report. 
 


Nothing in this Order shall require Provider or its Affiliate to pay an Agency Fee to the Agency when an 
Authorized Requestor provides a Report and/or specific data extracted from the Report to a third party after 
the Authorized Requestor has purchased such Report from the Affiliate’s inventory of previously purchased 
Reports. Agency acknowledges that all Reports requested by Agency Requestors shall be provided free of 
charge. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Order to be executed by their respective authorized 


representatives as of the Effective Date.   


Agency: Stoughton Police Department  


Signature:    


Name:    


Title:    


Date:    


Provider: LexisNexis Coplogic Solutions Inc. 


Signature:    


Name:    


Title:    


Date:    


 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 1 of 9 
 


 
LAW ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT 


This Law Enforcement Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated ______________________, 20_____   (“Effective Date”) by and between 
LexisNexis Coplogic Solutions Inc., with its principal place of business at 1000 Alderman Drive, Alpharetta, Georgia 30005 (“Provider”), 
and Stoughton Police Department, with its principal place of operations at 321 S. 4th Street, Stoughton, WI  53589 (“Agency”). Provider 
and Agency may be referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”.  


1. SCOPE.  


Provider as part of its business has developed several comprehensive products and services for law enforcement.  Subject to the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, Agency desires to order and Provider agrees to provide the various products and services 
contained herein (collectively referred to as the “Services”) as described in an applicable order to this Agreement (“Order”). The 
Parties acknowledge Agency is a law enforcement entity with responsibility for the documentation, retention, and management 
of information and reporting related to vehicle accidents, citations, and incidents occurring within its jurisdiction (as used within 
this Agreement, each documented event is a “Report”).  “Report” shall also include any associated or supplemental information 
provided with the Report including Agency name, images and upload date, as applicable. The Parties further acknowledge that 
Provider acts on behalf of Agency to the extent it assists in carrying out Agency’s obligations to provide the public access to vehicle 
accident reports and Provider shall provide such access in accordance with the Federal Driver’s Privacy Protection Act, (18 U.S.C. 
§ 2721 et seq.). 


2. LICENSE AND RESTRICTIONS. 


2.1. License Grant and License Restrictions. Upon execution of an applicable Order, Provider hereby grants to Agency a 
restricted, limited, revocable license to use the Services only as set forth in this Agreement and any applicable Order, and 
for no other purposes, subject to the restrictions and limitations set forth below: 


(a) Agency shall not access or use Services from outside the United States without Provider’s prior written approval; 
and  


(b) Agency shall not use the Services to create a competing product, provide data processing services to third parties, 
resell, or broker the Services to any third-party, or otherwise use the Services for any personal (non-law 
enforcement) purposes; and 


(c) Agency’s use of the Services hereunder will not knowingly violate any agreements to which Agency is bound; and 


(d) Agency shall not harvest, post, transmit, copy, modify, create derivative works from, tamper, distribute the 
Services, or in any way circumvent the navigational structure of the Services, including to upload or transmit any 
computer viruses, Trojan Horses, worms or anything else designed to interfere with, interrupt or disrupt the 
normal operating procedures of Services; and 


(e) Agency may not use the Services to store or transmit infringing, libellous, or otherwise unlawful or tortious 
material, or to store or transmit material in violation of third-party privacy rights or otherwise infringe on the 
rights of others; and 


(f) Agency shall not reveal any user accounts or passwords for the Services to any third parties (third parties shall 
not include Agency’s employees who have a need to know such information); and 


(g) Agency shall not permit any third party (third parties shall not include Agency’s employees who have a need to 
know such information) to view or use the Services, even if such third party is under contract to provide services 
to Agency; and 


(h) Agency shall comply with all laws, regulations, and rules which govern the use of the Services. 


2.2. Other Restrictions.  In addition Provider may, at any time, impose restrictions and/or prohibitions on the Agency’s use of 
the Services, or certain data or no longer offer certain functionalities or features that may be the result of a modification in 
Provider policy, a modification of third-party agreements, a modification in industry standards, a Security Event (defined 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 2 of 9 
 


below), a change in law or regulation, or the interpretation thereof, and/or an order from a Court, regulator, tribunal or 
other authority that has jurisdiction over Agency or Provider. Upon written notification by Provider of such restrictions, 
Agency agrees to comply with such restrictions or, in the event that Agency is unable to comply, it shall notify Provider in 
writing of its inability to comply within ten (10) days after receipt of Provider’s written notification.  In that event, either 
Party may immediately terminate this Agreement by providing written notice thereof to the other Party without such 
termination constituting a breach of this Agreement. Provider shall be Agency’s designated preferred provider of such 
Services as are mutually agreed to and defined hereunder, related to the handling of Agency’s Reports.   


2.3. Violation of License Terms and / or Restrictions. Agency agrees that, if Provider determines or reasonably suspects that: (i) 
Agency is violating any license terms, restrictions, or other material provision of the Agreement; or (ii) Agency has 
experienced a Security Event (as herein defined), Provider may, at its sole option, take immediate action up to and including, 
without further obligation or liability of any kind, terminating Agency’s account and the license to use the Services.   


3. SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE. 


3.1. Ongoing Maintenance. Provider will, from time-to-time issue and/or provide maintenance including bug fixes, 
enhancements, new features, or new functionality that are generally made available to customers along with any 
corresponding changes to documentation (“Maintenance”). Maintenance does not include work to custom code, 
customized configurations, or to unauthorized modifications of the Services. Any Provider assistance beyond standard 
Maintenance will be billed at Provider’s then current pricing schedule, as agreed upon in advance by the Parties. 
Additionally, upon Agency’s written notice of new or revised legislation, statutes, or ordinances requiring any Services to 
be updated, Provider shall update or modify the Services or particular form consistent with such new regulation within a 
reasonable time. 


3.2. Support Services. Provider will provide ongoing support services for problems, queries or requests for assistance 
(“Support”) provided that all requests for Support must be made to Provider Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM ET to 
8:00 PM ET at 1-888-949-3835.  Provider will also provide limited after hours Support including the ability to leave a message 
and receive a call back the following business day or sooner, if critical. In order to provide Support, Agency will provide all 
information reasonably required by Provider to identify the issue, including: an Agency point of contact (familiar with the 
Services and issue), description of issue, screenshots, the impact, and assist in Provider’s efforts to reproduce the problem 
(as applicable). Provider will work to resolve problem with reasonable promptness for issues that are application or Services 
related (Provider is not responsible for resolving issues caused by Agency hardware). The Agency agrees to provide Provider 
with data transfers, as requested, remote access to the Services system, and with sufficient test time on the Agency's 
computer system to duplicate the problem, to certify that the problem is with the Services, and to certify that the problem 
has been corrected. If the problem cannot readily be resolved, Provider will attempt to identify a work around. Upon 
resolution of any issue, Provider shall notify the Agency of such resolution via email. The Parties agree that Provider is not 
obligated to ensure that its Services are compatible with outdated (exceeding 4 years from date of initial release) hardware, 
computer operating services or database engines. 


3.3. On Site Support. In response to written Agency requests for Provider to provide on-site routine non-emergency support, 
Provider shall produce a written estimate of the time required to provide the requested support and state any 
requirements, such as the presence of Agency staff or other resources or materials. Any on-site support provided by 
Provider shall only be invoiced by Provider or paid by Agency if the problem arose due to something other than a defect in 
the Services. The Agency shall reimburse Provider at the rate of two thousand five hundred ($2,500.00) dollars per day for 
each Provider employee who provides any on-site support, and such fees will not include any reimbursement for Provider 
travel time or travel expenses.   


4. FEES. 


4.1. Fees due to Provider. Any fees due to Provider for Services hereunder shall be specified in an Order (“Fees”). For any Order 
where Fees are specified, Provider will issue an invoice to Agency pursuant to the terms in the Order. Invoices shall be paid 
in full by Agency within thirty (30) days from invoice date. Provider may increase or decrease the Fee following the Initial 
Term (as defined in an applicable Order) by providing Agency no less than sixty (60) days written notice prior to the effective 
date of such pricing change. To the extent an interface or other technological development is required to enable an Agency 
designated third party (i.e., RMS Vendor) to receive Reports from Provider at Agency’s request or to enable Provider to 
intake Agency Data, such cost shall not be borne by Provider.    







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 3 of 9 
 


4.1.1. Disputes. In the event Agency has a good faith dispute on all or a portion of an unpaid invoice (“Dispute”), Agency 
shall notify Provider in writing and follow the procedures set forth herein.  In the event of a Dispute, Agency shall 
promptly, but in no case more than thirty (30) days from receipt of the invoice, notify Provider in writing pursuant 
to the notice provisions of this Agreement (“Dispute Notice”). Agency shall identify in writing the specific cause of 
the Dispute, the amount in dispute, and reasonable documentation supporting the Dispute. Invoices not disputed 
within ninety (90) days of the invoice date will be deemed valid and may not later be disputed. The Parties agree to 
use best efforts to resolve all Disputes promptly and in good faith.  However, in the event the Parties are not able to 
resolve a Dispute within sixty (60) days from Provider’s receipt of a Dispute Notice, Provider shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement (including all Services) or the right to discontinue the applicable Service immediately, 
without such action constituting a breach or incurring any liability herein. All Fees not properly disputed or paid shall 
accrue interest at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum. All Fees are calculated for payment made via ACH, 
Wire, or Agency check. Agency agrees that Fees exclude taxes (if applicable) or other cost incurred by Agency’s RMS 
Vendor or other third parties and agrees such costs shall be passed on to Agency. Provider shall not be required to 
enter into a third-party relationship to obtain payment for the Service provided to Agency; however, should Provider 
elect to do so, Provider reserves the right to charge Agency additional fees for such accommodation.   


4.2. Fees due to Agency. Using the process as herein defined, on behalf of Agency, Provider will collect and remit to Agency a 
fee for all Reports (“Agency Fee”) purchased from the eCommerce portal set forth on the applicable Order, including but 
not limited to fees for purchases of Reports from that eCommerce portal by an Affiliate.  On a monthly basis, Provider will 
electronically transfer to Agency’s designated account, the total amount of applicable Agency Fee collected by Provider 
during the previous month. Provider will make available a monthly report to Agency identifying the number of Reports 
provided on its behalf via the LexisNexis® Command Center (“Command Center”) administration portal and/or its successor. 


4.2.1. No Agency Fee will be paid with respect to the following:  


(a) When an Affiliate of Provider has paid an Agency Fee to acquire a Report for an Authorized Requestor (including 
Reports purchased before the applicable Order Effective Date) and such Affiliate later resells that Report from 
its inventory of previously purchased Reports to another Authorized Requestor; or 


(b) When one or more components of a Report (e.g., VIN number), rather than the Report in its entirety, is provided 
by Provider to an Authorized Requestor or an Affiliate of Provider ; or 


(c) When a Report is acquired by an Affiliate of Provider from a source other than the eCommerce portal set forth 
on the applicable Order; or 


(d) When a fee is not charged to an Authorized Requestor for the Report. 


Nothing in this Agreement shall require Provider or its Affiliate to pay an Agency Fee to the Agency when an Authorized 
Requestor provides a Report and/or specific data extracted from the Report to a third party after the Authorized Requestor 
has purchased such Report from the Affiliate’s inventory of previously purchased Reports. Agency acknowledges that all 
reports requested by Agency Requestors shall be provided free of charge. 


4.3. Fees retained by Provider. Where permitted by law, Provider will charge a convenience fee for each Report provided to an 
Authorized Requestor (“Convenience Fee”) which shall be retained by Provider. The Convenience Fee shall be established 
by Provider at its discretion, but in no event shall it exceed the amount Provider may legally charge an Authorized Requestor. 


5. CONTRIBUTION/DISTRIBUTION.  


5.1. Agency acknowledges and agrees that Provider has compiled certain databases of person data, vehicle data, and/or incident 
data contributed from other law enforcement agencies (“Participating Agencies”) accessing certain of the Services. Agency 
further acknowledges and agrees that such contribution data (a) is available only to Participating Agencies that have 
authorized the contribution and distribution of their data via such databases and (b) may be used solely for investigative 
and/or law enforcement purposes and for no other purpose whatsoever.   


5.2. For Services that contemplate the sale of Reports, as more specifically described in an Order, Provider shall distribute 
Reports and/or specific data extracted from the Report to individuals or legal entities (“Authorized Requestors”) and other 
authorized law enforcement entities (“Agency Requestors”) in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and/or an 
order from a court, regulator, tribunal or other authority that has jurisdiction over Agency or Provider. Nothing in this 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 4 of 9 
 


Agreement shall prohibit Provider’s Affiliates (defined in Section 16.1, “Affiliates” below) from purchasing Reports from the 
ecommerce portal set forth in the Order, or from distributing previously purchased Reports and/or specific data extracted 
from the Report to Authorized Requestors or Agency Requestors in accordance with the terms of the Order and applicable 
laws, regulations, and/or an order from a court, regulator, tribunal or other authority that has jurisdiction over Agency or 
Provider. Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit Affiliates from acquiring Reports from a source other than the ecommerce 
portal set forth in the Order. 


6. TERMS AND TERMINATION.  


6.1. Term. This Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date and shall continue until terminated in accordance with this 
Agreement.  Each Order shall set forth the specified term for the particular Service.  


6.2. Termination.   


6.2.1. Either Party may terminate this Agreement or any Order for cause if the other Party breaches a material obligation 
under the terms of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice 
thereof from the non-breaching Party, provided, however, that if such material breach is of a nature that it cannot 
be cured, immediate termination shall be allowed. Failure to pay by either Party shall be considered a material 
default.  


6.2.2. Either Party may elect to terminate this Agreement or any Order by providing written notice to the other of such 
intent, at least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the applicable Order term.  


6.2.3. Provider may, upon six (6) months written notice to Agency, terminate any Service that will no longer be supported 
or offered by Provider. Provider will make reasonable efforts to transition Agency to a similar Service, if available. 
Further, Provider may at any time cease to provide Agency access to any portions of features of the Services thereof 
which Provider is no longer legally or contractually permitted to provide. 


6.3. Effect of Termination. Upon termination of this Agreement, each Party shall be liable for payment to the other Party of all 
amounts due and payable for Services provided through the effective date of such termination. Upon receipt of Agency’s 
written request after termination, Provider shall provide Agency with access to Reports provided by Agency under this 
Agreement and/or data provided through provision of the Services by Agency under an applicable Order so Agency may 
download and/or copy such information. Provider shall not be obligated to delete from its databases (or from other storage 
media) and/or return to Agency, Reports already provided to Provider by Agency, and shall be permitted to continue to 
maintain and distribute the Reports already in its possession to Authorized Requestors in compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, and/or an order from a court, regulator, tribunal or other authority that has jurisdiction over Agency or 
Provider.  


7. RELEVANT LAWS.  


Each Party shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations related to its performance hereunder, 
including: 


7.1. Driver’s Privacy Protection Act. Agency acknowledges that certain Services provided under this Agreement may include the 
provision of certain personal information data obtained from state Departments of Motor Vehicles (“DMV Data”) and that 
such DMV Data may be governed by the Federal Driver’s Privacy Protection Act, (18 U.S.C. § 2721 et seq.) and related state 
laws (“DPPA”), and that Agency is required to comply with the DPPA, as applicable. Agency acknowledges and agrees that 
it may be required to certify its permissible use of DPPA or DMV Data at the time it requests information in connection with 
certain Services and will recertify upon request by Provider. 


7.2. Fair Credit Reporting Act. The Services provided pursuant to this Agreement are not provided by “consumer reporting 
agencies” as that term is defined in the Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.) (“FCRA”) and do not constitute 
“consumer reports” as that term is defined in the FCRA. Agency certifies that it will not use any of the information it receives 
through the Services in whole or in part as a factor in determining eligibility for credit, insurance, or employment or for any 
other eligibility purpose that would qualify the information in as a consumer report. 


7.3. Protected Health Information.  Unless otherwise contemplated by an applicable Business Associate Agreement executed 
by the Parties, Agency will not provide Provider with any Protected Health Information (as that term is defined in 45 C.F.R. 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 5 of 9 
 


Sec. 160.103) or with Electronic Health Records or Patient Health Records (as those terms are defined in 42 U.S.C. Sec. 
17921(5), and 42 U.S.C. Sec. 17921(11), respectively) or with information from such records without the execution of a 
separate agreement between the Parties. 


7.4. Social Security Numbers. Social Security Numbers may be available hereunder as part of Reports and/or related data 
provided from certain states. However, Agency shall not provide Social Security Numbers to Provider under any 
circumstances under this Agreement. Should Agency require more information on Social Security Numbers or its obligations 
in relation thereto, Agency should contact Provider Agency Service at 1-866-215-2771 for assistance.  


7.5. Privacy Principles. Agency shall comply with the “Provider Data Privacy Principles” available at 
http://www.lexisnexis.com/privacy/data-privacy-principles.aspx, as updated from time to time. Provider shall notify 
Agency in writing in the event that material changes are made to the Provider Data Privacy Principles. 


7.6. Security.  Agency agrees to protect against the misuse and/or unauthorized access of the Services provided to Agency in 
accordance with this Agreement and as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto. 


8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY OWNERSHIP. 


8.1. Definition. “Confidential Information” means all non-public information provided by the disclosing Party to the receiving 
Party hereunder, including, without limitation, the terms of this Agreement, all information related to technical, financial, 
strategies and related information, business information, computer programs, algorithms, know-how, processes, 
databases, systems, ideas, inventions (whether patentable or not), schematics, Trade Secrets (as defined by applicable law) 
and other information (whether written or oral). Confidential Information does not include Reports and information related 
thereto. Confidential Information does not include information that was, at the time of the disclosure: (a) or becomes 
(through no improper action or inaction by the recipient) generally known to the public; (b) lawfully disclosed to recipient 
by a third-party and received in good faith and without any duty of confidentiality by the recipient or the third-party; (c) in 
recipient’s possession or known to it prior to receipt from discloser; or (d) independently developed by recipient; provided 
in each case that such forgoing information was not delivered to or obtained by recipient as a result of any breach of this 
Agreement. 


8.2. Treatment of Confidential Information. Each Party agrees to protect the Confidential Information with the same degree of 
care it uses to protect its own confidential information of a similar nature, but not less than a reasonable standard of care 
and not to use the other Party’s Confidential Information other than as necessary to perform its obligations or as permitted 
under this Agreement. A Party shall not remove or destroy any proprietary or confidential legends or markings placed upon 
or contained within any Confidential Information.  


8.3. Intellectual Property Ownership. Each Party retains all right, title, and interest under applicable contractual, copyright and 
related laws to their respective Confidential Information, including the right to use such information for all purposes 
permissible by applicable laws, rules, and regulations. Provider retains all rights (other than the limited license granted 
herein), title, interest, ownership and all intellectual property rights in the Services including any improvements or 
modifications thereto, and Agency shall use such information consistent with such right, title and interest and notify 
Provider of any threatened or actual infringement thereof.  Agency shall not remove or obscure any copyright or other 
notices from the Services or materials provided hereunder. 


8.4. Exception for Subpoenas and Court Orders. A Party may disclose Confidential Information solely to the extent required by 
subpoena, court order or other governmental authority, provided that the receiving Party provides the disclosing Party 
prompt written notice of such subpoena, court order or other governmental authority so as to allow the disclosing Party an 
opportunity to obtain a protective order to prohibit or limit such disclosure at its sole cost and expense. Confidential 
Information disclosed pursuant to subpoena, court order or other governmental authority shall otherwise remain subject 
to the terms applicable to Confidential Information. 


8.5. Duration. Each Party’s obligations with respect to Confidential Information shall continue for the term of this Agreement 
and for a period of five (5) years after termination of this Agreement, provided however, that with respect to Trade Secrets, 
each Party’s obligations shall continue for so long as such Confidential Information continues to constitute a Trade Secret. 


8.6. Return of Confidential Information. Upon the written request of a Party (and except as otherwise specifically set forth in an 
applicable Order), each Party shall return or destroy (and certify such destruction in a signed writing) any of the other Party’s 



http://www.lexisnexis.com/privacy/data-privacy-principles.aspx





  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 6 of 9 
 


Confidential Information unless retention of such information is required by law, regulations, and/or an order from a court, 
regulator, tribunal or other authority that has jurisdiction over Agency or Provider. 


8.7. Injunctive Relief. In the event of a breach or a threatened breach of the confidentiality or privacy provisions of this 
Agreement, the non-breaching Party may have no adequate remedy in monetary damages and, accordingly, may seek an 
injunction against the breaching Party.  


8.8. Other. During the term of this Agreement and subject to approval by Agency, Agency agrees to serve as a reference for the 
Services, which may include (i) reference calls with mutually acceptable prospects; (ii) a published “success story” describing 
the partnership with Provider; (iii) the use of Agency’s name in Provider marketing activities; or (iv) a favorable reference 
of Provider to an industry analyst or at an industry conference. 


9. PROVIDER AUDIT RIGHTS.  


Agency understands and agrees that, in order to ensure Agency’s compliance with the Agreement, as well as with applicable laws, 
regulations and rules, Provider’s obligations under its contracts with its data providers, and Provider’s internal policies, Provider 
may conduct periodic reviews of Agency’s use of the Services and may, upon reasonable notice, audit Agency’s records, processes 
and procedures related to Agency’s use, storage and disposal of the Services and information received therefrom. Agency agrees 
to cooperate fully with any and all audits and to respond to any such audit inquiry within ten (10) business days, unless an 
expedited response is required. Violations discovered in any review and/or audit by Provider will be subject to immediate action 
including, but not limited to, invoicing for any applicable fees (if Services are based on number of users and Agency’s use exceeds 
licenses granted), suspension or termination of the license to use the Services, legal action, and/or referral to federal or state 
regulatory agencies. 


10. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.  


Agency represents and warrants to Provider that Agency is fully authorized to disclose Reports, information, and related data or 
images to Provider in accordance with this Agreement and to grant Provider the rights to provide the Services as described herein. 
Where redaction of Reports is required prior to provision to Provider, Agency represents and warrants it will redact applicable 
Reports consistent with all laws and regulations. In performing their respective obligations under this Agreement, each Party 
agrees to use any data and provide any Services, in strict conformance with applicable laws, regulations, and/or an order from a 
court, regulator, tribunal or other authority that has jurisdiction over Agency or Provider and consistent with the terms of this 
Agreement.  


11. LIMITATION OF WARRANTY.  


FOR PURPOSES OF THIS SECTION, “PROVIDER” INCLUDES PROVIDER AND ITS AFFILIATES, SUBSIDIARIES, PARENT COMPANIES, 
AND DATA PROVIDERS. THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY PROVIDER ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" AND WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS, 
IMPLIED, OR OTHERWISE, REGARDING ITS ACCURACY OR PERFORMANCE INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED 
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, SUITABILITY, ORIGINALITY, OR OTHERWISE, OF ANY 
SERVICES, SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS PROVIDED HEREUNDER.   


12. INDEMNIFICATION.  


To the extent permitted under applicable law, each Party shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other Party, its affiliates, 
and their officers, directors, employees, and agents (the “Indemnified Parties”) against and from any and all losses, liabilities, 
damages, actions, claims, demands, settlements, judgments, and any other expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees), which 
are asserted against the Indemnified Parties by a third party, but only to the extent caused by (i) violation of law in the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement by the Indemnifying Party, its affiliates, or the officers, agents or employees 
of such Party (the “Indemnifying Parties”); (ii) the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying Parties during the 
term of this Agreement; (iii) violation, infringement or misappropriation of any U.S. patent, copyright, trade secret or other 
intellectual property right; or (iv) with respect to Agency, violation of any of the license terms or restrictions contained in this 
Agreement. The indemnities in this section are subject to the Indemnified Parties promptly notifying the Indemnifying Parties in 
writing of any claims or suits. 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 7 of 9 
 


13. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. 


To the extent permitted by applicable law, Provider’s entire liability for any claims(s) resulting from its acts or omissions, including, 
but not limited to negligence claims under this Agreement shall not exceed the total amount of Fees actually received by Provider 
from Agency (excluding pass through or out of pocket expenses) for the specific Services from which liability arises during the 
twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the event first giving rise to such liability, and if not yet in the twelfth (12th) 
month of this Agreement, for the period leading up to such event. To the extent the relevant Services are made available at no 
cost to Agency, then in no event shall Provider’s liability to Agency under this Agreement exceed one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
in the aggregate. This limitation of liability will not apply to any claims, actions, damages, liabilities or fines relating to or arising 
from Provider’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. In no event shall Provider be liable for any indirect, special, incidental, or 
consequential damages in connection with this Agreement or the performance or failure to perform hereunder, even if advised 
of the possibility of such damages. 


14. FORCE MAJEURE.  


Neither Party will be liable for any delay or failure to perform its obligations hereunder due to causes beyond its reasonable 
control, including but not limited to natural disaster, pandemic, casualty, act of god or public enemy, riot, terrorism, or 
governmental act; provided, however, that such Party will not have contributed in any way to such event. If the delay or failure 
continues beyond thirty (30) calendar days, either Party may terminate this Agreement or any impacted Order with no further 
liability, except that Agency will be obligated to pay Provider for the Services provided under this Agreement prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 


15. NOTICES.  


All notices, requests, demands or other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing to the address set forth in the 
opening paragraph and shall be deemed to have been duly given: (i) on the date of service if served personally on the Party to 
whom notice is to be given; (ii) on the day after delivery to a commercial or postal overnight carrier service; or (iii) on the fifth day 
after mailing, if mailed to the Party to whom such notice is to be given, by first class mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid 
and properly addressed.  Any Party hereto may change its address for the purpose of this section by giving the other Party timely, 
written notice of its new address in the manner set forth above. 


16. MISCELLANEOUS. 


16.1. Affiliates. For purposes of this Agreement, “Affiliate” means any corporation, firm, partnership or other entity that directly 
or indirectly controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with Provider. Affiliates shall not be bound by the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement with respect to the provision of their applicable Services hereunder and nothing in 
this Agreement shall prevent or limit Affiliates from offering previously purchased Reports or data extracted from Reports 
for sale. 


16.2. Independent Contractor/No Agency. Each Party acknowledges that it has no authority to bind or otherwise obligate the 
other Party. 


16.3. Assignment. Neither Party shall assign this Agreement in whole or in part without the prior written consent of the other 
Party, and any such attempted assignment contrary to the foregoing shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an 
assignment by operation of law, as a result of a merger or consolidation of a Party, does not require the consent of the 
other Party. This Agreement will be binding upon the Parties’ respective successors and assigns. 


16.4. Headings, Interpretation, and Severability.  The headings in this Agreement are inserted for reference only and are not 
intended to affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. The language of this Agreement shall not be construed 
against either Party. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, the validity, 
legality, or enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby. 


16.5. Waiver; Remedies Non-Exclusive. No failure or delay on the part of any Party in exercising any right or remedy provided in 
this Agreement will operate as a waiver thereof. Unless otherwise provided herein, any remedy will be cumulative to any 
other right or remedy available at law or in equity. 


16.6. Survival. Sections 2-4, 7-12, and 15 shall survive the termination or rescission of this Agreement. 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 8 of 9 
 


16.7. Provider Shared Facilities. Provider may utilize facilities located outside the United States to provide support or the Services 
under this Agreement, and if such centers are utilized they shall be under the control of Provider and subject to all Provider 
policies that govern data access, protection and transport in the United States.  


16.8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement of the Parties and supersedes all previous and 
contemporaneous communications or agreements regarding the subject matter hereto. Agency by its signature below 
hereby certifies that Agency agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement including those terms and 
conditions posted on web pages specifically set forth herein or contained with any software provided under this Agreement, 
as may be updated from time to time. Any additional terms or conditions contained in purchase orders or other forms are 
expressly rejected by Provider and shall not be binding. Acceptance or non-rejection of purchase orders or other forms 
containing such terms; Provider’s continuation of providing Products or Services; or any other inaction by Provider shall not 
constitute Provider’s consent to or acceptance of any additional or different terms from that stated in this Agreement.  This 
Agreement may only be modified by a written document signed by both Parties. 


16.9. Governing Law. The Agreement will be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Wisconsin excluding its 
conflict of law rules.  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective authorized representatives as of 
the Effective Date. 


Agency: Stoughton Police Department  


Signature:    


Name:    


Title:    


Date:    


Provider: LexisNexis Coplogic Solutions Inc. 


Signature:    


Name:    


Title:    


Date:    


 







  


Confidential – Law Enforcement Agreement (Q1.21.V1) DA10182021 Page 9 of 9 
 


EXHIBIT A - SECURITY AND NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 


1. Data Protection. Agency shall take appropriate measures to protect against the misuse and unauthorized access through or to 
Agency’s (i) credentials (“Account IDs”) used to access the Services; or (ii) corresponding passwords, whether by Agency or any 
third party; or (iii) the Services and/or information derived therefrom.  Agency shall manage identification, use, and access control 
to all Account IDs in an appropriately secure manner and shall promptly deactivate any Account IDs when no longer needed or 
where access presents a security risk.  Agency shall implement its own appropriate program for Account ID management and shall 
use commercially reasonable efforts to follow the policies and procedures for account maintenance as may be communicated to 
Agency by Provider from time to time in writing.  


2. Agency’s Information Security Program. Agency shall implement and document appropriate policies and procedures covering the 
administrative, physical and technical safeguards in place and relevant to the access, use, storage, destruction, and control of 
information which are measured against objective standards and controls (“Agency’s Information Security Program”).  Agency’s 
Information Security Program shall: (1) account for known and reasonably anticipated threats and Agency shall monitor for new 
threats on an ongoing basis; and (2) meet or exceed industry best practices. Agency will promptly remediate any deficiencies 
identified in Agency’s Information Security Program. Agency shall not allow the transfer of any personally identifiable information 
received from Provider across any national borders outside the United States without the prior written consent of Provider.   


3. Agency Security Event. In the event Agency learns or has reason to believe that Account IDs, the Services, or any information 
related thereto have been misused, disclosed, or accessed in an unauthorized manner or by an unauthorized person (an “Agency 
Security Event”) Agency shall: 


(a) provide immediate written notice to:  


(i) the Information Security and Compliance Organization at 1000 Alderman Drive, Alpharetta, Georgia 30005; or  
(ii) via email to (security.investigations@lexisnexis.com); or  
(iii) by phone at (1-888-872-5375) with a written notification to follow within twenty four (24) hours; and 


(b) promptly investigate the situation; and 
(c) obtain written consent from Provider, not to be unreasonably withheld, prior to disclosing Provider or the Services 


to any third party in connection with the Agency Security Event; and 
(d) if required by law, or in Provider’ discretion, Agency shall: 


(i) notify the individuals whose information was disclosed that an Agency Security Event has occurred; and 
(ii) be responsible for all legal and regulatory obligations including any associated costs which may arise in 


connection with the Agency Security Event; and 


(e) remain solely liable for all costs and claims that may arise from the Agency Security Event, including, but not limited 
to: litigation (including attorney’s fees); reimbursement sought by individuals (including costs for credit monitoring 
and other losses alleged to be in connection with such Agency Security Event); and 


(f) provide all proposed third party notification materials to Provider for review and approval prior to distribution. 


In the event of an Agency Security Event, Provider may, in its sole discretion, take immediate action, including suspension or 
termination of Agency’s account, without further obligation or liability of any kind. 







Transform your crash data into a force multiplier
Local police departments complete hundreds, if not thousands, of crash reports filled with 
critical data about causation, accident location, driver demographics, weather, time of day 
and more. Crash Mapper and Dashboards, both free features accessible via the LexisNexis® 
Command Center from LexisNexis® CoplogicTM Solutions, aggregate, analyze and automatically 
transform that data into a force multiplier that enables agencies to:


•   Quickly identify and correct traffic safety issues


•   Pinpoint where, when and why accidents happen


•   Intelligently deploy patrols based on peak or recurring activity


•   Access detailed crash statistics to support federal grant applications or special initiatives


•   Provide targeted, near real-time data for neighborhood meetings and media interviews 


Dynamic crash analytics,  
at your fingertips.


Visualize critical traffic-safety 


issues and trends in seconds 


Coplogic™ Solutions


Crash Mapper and Dashboards from LexisNexis® CoplogicTM Solutions


Crash Mapper 
and Dashboards 
are free features 
instantly 
accessible via 
the LexisNexis® 
Command 
Center







Ready to get started? Contact us today to learn how you can gain access to the  
Crash Mapper and Dashboards as part of the LexisNexis eCrash or BuyCrash solutions: 


877.719.8806 or email solutionsinquiry@lexisnexisrisk.com.


The Crash Mapper and Dashboards, eCrash and BuyCrash services are not provided by “consumer reporting agencies,” as that term is defined in the Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. 
§ 1681, et seq.) (“FCRA”) and does not constitute “consumer reports,” as that term is defined in the FCRA. Accordingly, the Crash Mapper and Dashboards, eCrash and BuyCrash services 
may not  be used in whole or in part as a factor in determining eligibility for credit, insurance, employment or for any other eligibility purpose that would qualify it as a consumer report 
under the FCRA. Due to the nature of the origin of public record information, the public records and commercially available data sources used in reports may contain errors. Source data 
is sometimes reported or entered inaccurately, processed poorly or incorrectly, and is generally not free from defect. This product or service aggregates and reports data, as provided by 
the public records and commercially available datasources, and is not the source of the data, nor is it a comprehensive compilation of the data. Before relying on any data, it should be 
independently verified. LexisNexis and the Knowledge Burst logo are registered trademarks of RELX Inc. Coplogic and BuyCrash are trademarks of Coplogic Solutions, Inc. Other products 
and services may be trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies. Copyright © 2020 LexisNexis. NXR14587-00-0820-EN-US


Crash Mapper


*To the extent an agency chooses to charge an agency report fee


Switch from street views, satellite views, heat maps and 
points overlay 
•  Add landmarks/points of interest to maps


Zoom in and out of maps and hover over specific location 
for details
•  View report image by clicking link


Map based on longitude/latitude in report 
•   Geocoding used when longitude/latitude not listed


Filter by date, agency, crash city location, address 
•  Includes last 90 days of reports 
•  Advanced setting available 


Dashboards
View multiple dashboards including Summary, Causation, 
Teen and Elderly views
•   NOTE: Causation dashboards are not available to agencies 


that submit paper crash reports


Modify views and illustrations by simply selecting or 
deselecting legend values
•  Hover over data points for more detail


Download charts and graphs in PDF or Excel formats or 
choose a “quickview” of data in table format


Build at-a-glance views of mission-critical crash statistics 
including crash counts and categories including alcohol, 
weather and more


Available to crash customers, AT NO COST
Crash Mapper and Dashboards, available 24/7 via The Command Center, provide intuitive, easy-to-understand 
maps and data visualizations. Both are available to all LexisNexis® CoplogicTM Solutions crash customers at no cost. 


How do you sign up? Send us your crash reports
If you’re not already enrolled in one of our crash solutions—LexisNexis® eCrash or LexisNexis® BuyCrashTM— 
simply sign up and start submitting your crash reports. These solutions are available at no cost and can provide 
a powerful source of report revenue* and the lifesaving insights found in crash report data can help law 
enforcement agencies better serve and protect their communities.


Crash Mapper and Dashboards from LexisNexis® CoplogicTM Solutions


Coplogic™ Solutions







LexisNexis® BuyCrash™


Optimize your resources and 
your investigative insights.  


Get more out of your police reports. 


LexisNexis® BuyCrash™


Coplogic™ Solutions







1 LexisNexis® BuyCrash™


LexisNexis® BuyCrash™


Easier report ordering. 
For everyone.
It begins at the crash scene, where officers 
provide involved parties with an “exchange of 
information” card, informing them of where 
and how to obtain a copy of their report online, 
using the web-based solution. From that point 
on, everything is handled online, including 
payment, report delivery and process tracking. 


LexisNexis BuyCrash helps agencies:


  Improve report distribution, 
accessibility and administrative 
efficiency by distributing reports 24/7 
online to authorized requesters


  Enhance public service by offering a 
fast, easy and convenient alternative 
to traveling to the agency to retrieve 
crash reports, where citizens may incur 
parking fees


  Preserve and reallocate administrative 
resources such as manpower and 
supplies that are normally required to 
handle requests and print reports


  Easily track and monitor report requests 
and sales, including who bought reports 
when, how many reports sold, agency fees 
generated, payment history and more


  Strengthen compliance with federal, 
state and local laws regarding the 
distribution of crash reports


Over 170 million pieces of data. 
For investigators.
With LexisNexis BuyCrash, agencies also gain 
free access to comprehensive investigative 
insights through People Search on LexisNexis® 
Command Center, a robust single sign-on 
portal that offers centralized access to multiple 
products from LexisNexis Coplogic Solutions. 


Just one search on the Command Center 
provides access to an unparalleled accident 
report database of 173 million pieces of data, 
including 91 million person and 82 million 
accident records. This includes more than 35,000 
accidents reports, and 62,000 VINs added daily. 
Our robust database enables investigators to dig 
deep into the data and receive fresh insights to 
help inform and accelerate their efforts.


  Instantly search millions of crash 
reports submitted by more than 4,500 
agencies around the country


  Get free access to AutoCheck® 
TriggersSM where investigators can 
search and monitor VINs in seconds 


  Access reliable police report data that’s 
backed by the information management 
strength of LexisNexis, a trusted 
custodian of data for more than 40 years


The process of manually requesting, printing and delivering accident reports can 
require a lot of time, money and resources. At the end of the day, there’s often no 
value added to the law enforcement agency, since agency fees collected merely 
support the labor-intensive, paper-driven workflow.


That’s what makes LexisNexis® BuyCrashTM different. It helps eliminate inefficiencies and 
resource burdens associated with a paper-based report ordering process by offering a streamlined, 
Web-based solution that’s available to authorized requesters 24/7. In addition, it also supports 
investigative efforts, with instant access to comprehensive insights about individuals and vehicles.


With LexisNexis BuyCrash, you get streamlined online report ordering and access to deeper 
investigative insights in a single solution that’s provided at no cost to law enforcement agencies.  







2LexisNexis® BuyCrash™


Transform your crash data into a force multiplier
The Crash Mapper and Dashboards are free features included as part of the LexisNexis® BuyCrash 
solution. Local police departments complete hundreds, if not thousands, of crash reports filled with 
critical data about causation, accident location, driver demographics, weather, time of day and more. 
With the Crash Mapper and Dashboards, agencies can aggregate, analyze and automatically transform 
that data into a force multiplier that enables agencies to:


•   Quickly identify and correct traffic safety issues


•   Pinpoint where, when and why accidents happen


•   Intelligently deploy patrols based on peak or recurring activity


•   Access detailed crash statistics to support federal grant applications or special initiatives


•   Provide targeted, near real-time data for neighborhood meetings and Command Staff reviews


Crash Mapper


*To the extent an agency chooses to charge an agency report fee


Switch from street views, satellite views, heat 
maps and points overlay 
•  Add landmarks/points of interest to maps


Zoom in and out of maps and hover over specific 
location for details
•  View report image by clicking link


Map based on longitude/latitude in report 
•   Geocoding used when longitude/latitude not 


listed


Filter by numerous causations such as date, 
injury type, crash-city location, day of the week
•  Includes last 90 days of reports 
•  Advanced setting available 


Dashboards
View multiple dashboards including Summary, 
Causation, Teen and Elderly views
•   NOTE: Causation dashboards are not available 


to agencies that submit paper crash reports


Modify views and illustrations by simply selecting 
or deselecting legend values
•  Hover over data points for more detail


Download charts and graphs in PDF or Excel 
formats or choose a “quickview” of data in table 
format


Build at-a-glance views of mission-critical crash 
statistics including crash counts and categories 
including alcohol, weather and more


LexisNexis® BuyCrash™







Learn more today by calling 877.719.8806  
or emailing solutionsinquiry@lexisnexisrisk.com


The Police Reports Service is not provided by “consumer reporting agencies,” as that term is defined in the Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq.) (“FCRA”) and does not constitute 
“consumer reports,” as that term is defined in the FCRA. Accordingly, the Police Reports service may not be used in whole or in part as a factor in determining eligibility for credit, insurance, 
employment or for any other eligibility purpose that would qualify it as a consumer report under the FCRA. Due to the nature of the origin of public record information, the public records and 
commercially available data sources used in reports may contain errors. Source data is sometimes reported or entered inaccurately, processed poorly or incorrectly, and is generally not free from 
defect. This product or service aggregates and reports data, is provided by the public records and commercially available data sources, and is not the source of the data, nor is it a comprehensive 
compilation of the data. Before relying on any data, it should be independently verified. LexisNexis and the Knowledge Burst logo are registered trademarks of RELX Inc. Coplogic is a trademark of 
LexisNexis Coplogic Solutions Inc. Experian and the Experian marks used herein are trademarks or registered trademarks of Experian Information Solutions, Inc. Other products and services may be 
trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective companies. Copyright © 2020 LexisNexis. NXR12110-02-0818-EN-US


About LexisNexis Risk Solutions
At LexisNexis Risk Solutions, we believe in the power of data and advanced analytics for better risk management. With over 40 years of
expertise, we are the trusted data analytics provider for organizations seeking actionable insights to manage risks and improve results while 
upholding the highest standards for security and privacy. Headquartered in metro Atlanta USA, LexisNexis Risk Solutions serves customers in 
more than 100 countries and is part of RELX Group, a global provider of information and analytics for professional and business customers 
across industries. For more information, please visit www.lexisnexis.com/risk.


Coplogic™ Solutions


Did you know the agency fees you generate from report sales can be used  
to help offset the cost of additional solutions?


1. 2. 3.


Agency fees   
can be used to 
o�set some 
of the cost of 
other Coplogic


Crash reports  
are sold online 
generating 
agency fees.


Your agency
takes and 
processes
crash reports.


solutions.



https://risk.lexisnexis.com/copyright



		Stoughton WI PD- eCommerce Order 1

		1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS. All of the terms and conditions contained in the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall apply to the extent applicable to this Order except as expressly modified herein.  To the extent that the terms and con...

		2. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES. Provider, as part of its business, has developed web based portal(s) to distribute Reports to Authorized Requestors and other authorized entities online.  In exchange for the Services provided to Agency, Agency agrees that ...

		3. SCOPE OF SERVICES. Provider agrees to provide the following Services to Agency subject to the provisions of this Order.  Except as provided in Section 2.2 of the Agreement, any change to the Services as set forth in this Order that occur after the ...

		4. TERM AND TERMINATION.  This Order shall commence upon the Order Effective Date and shall continue for an initial term of thirty six (36) months (“Initial Term”), whereupon this Order shall automatically renew for additional twelve (12) month period...

		5. FEES. Pursuant to Section 4 of the Agreement, the Agency Fee is write out agency fee ex: Five Dollars and 00/100) ($write out agency fee in decimal ex: $5.00).  There shall be no fee to Agency for the Services.



		Stoughton WI PD- MSA

		11 LexisNexis BuyCrash 2021

		11 Crash Mapper and Dashboards

		11 LexisNexis BuyCrash 2021








CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  January 7, 2022 
 
To:  Public Safety Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Outdoor Storage Ordinance Revisions 
 
We have been working with the City Attorney to evaluate our outdoor storage ordinances and the 
tools for compliance.  As proposed, Outdoor Storage violations will be classified as Public 
Nuisances.  The Public Nuisance regulations offer abatement procedures not found in Chapter 
10. 
 
These ordinance revisions are proposed for your consideration. 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works 1-11-2022 - Nordic Ridge Phase IV Accept Public Improvements.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Page 1 of 6 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Repealing and Recreating Sections 10-311 through 10-319 of the Stoughton Municipal Code  


Chapter 10 
Relating to Minimum Maintenance Standards and Outdoor Storage 


Committee Action:     
Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date Introduced:   


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
1. Chapter 10 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is repealed and recreated to provide as 


follows: 
 


ARTICLE VII. MINIMUM MAINTENANCE STANDARDS AND OUTDOOR STORAGE 


Sec. 10-311. Penalty. 


Any person who shall violate any provision of this article or any order, rule or regulation made under this 
article shall be subject to a penalty as provided in section 1-3.  


(Code 1986, § 14.20) 


Sec. 10-312. Purpose. 


(a) The city council finds that there are or may be in the future pieces of real property and buildings in the city 
which are so dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, unsanitary, overcrowded or inadequately maintained as to 
constitute a menace to the persons residing on such property and to be deleterious to the general aesthetics 
and property values of persons residing in the vicinity of such property. The city council further finds that 
widespread concern exists regarding the allocation of responsibilities for such maintenance between owners 
of such property and tenants residing therein.  


(b) It is the purpose of this article to preserve and promote the public health, safety, convenience, prosperity 
and general welfare of the people of the city by regulating in a manner which corrects the problems in 
subsection (a) of this section with only minimal infringement on each affected person's property.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(1)) 


Sec. 10-313. Definitions. 


The definitions listed in section 10-241 shall apply to this article wherever the words so defined appear.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(2)) 







 


 Page 2 of 6 


Cross reference(s)—Definitions generally, § 1-2.  


Sec. 10-314. Applicability. 


This article shall apply to all dwellings, dwelling units, roominghouses and premises including single-family 
owner-occupied dwellings.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(3)) 


Sec. 10-315. Inspections. 


Upon written complaint to the mayor, city councilmember, police department or building inspector, the 
building inspector may seek issuance of a search warrant from the municipal judge to make an inspection to 
determine the condition of the dwelling, dwelling unit, rooming unit or premises complained about so that he may 
prefer in the duty of eliminating the problem consistent with the findings of section 10-312. For the purpose of 
making such inspection, every occupant of a dwelling or dwelling unit shall give the owner thereof, or his agent, 
access to any part of such dwelling or dwelling unit or its premises at any reasonable time for making such repairs 
or alterations which are necessary to comply with this article or any lawful order issued by the building inspector.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(4)) 


Sec. 10-316. Enforcement and appeals. 


(a) Notice of violation. Whenever the building inspector determines that reasonable grounds exist to believe 
that a violation has occurred of any provision of this article affecting the health of the occupant of a dwelling, 
dwelling unit or rooming unit or the health of the general public, or whenever the building inspector 
determines that reasonable grounds exist to believe that a violation has occurred of any provision of this 
article affecting the safety of such occupant or the safety or aesthetic values of the general public, the 
building inspector shall notify the person responsible for such violation.  


(b) Information on notice. Such notice shall:  


(1) Be in writing;  


(2) State the reason for its issuance;  


(3) Allow 15 days for the performance of any act it requires;  


(4) Be served on the person responsible for such violation;  


(5) Contain an outline of remedial action which, if taken, will comply with this article.  


(c) Service of notice. Service of such notice upon the person responsible for the violation shall be deemed proper 
if served personally, or by registered mail to his last known address, or by posting it in a conspicuous place in 
the premises affected by such notice or by serving the notice by any other method authorized by statute.  


(d) Hearing. Any person affected by such notice may petition for a hearing before the board of appeals. Such 
petition must be filed with the department of planning and development within ten days after service of the 
notice. Such petition shall contain a written statement of the grounds for appeal. Upon receipt of such 
petition, the department of planning and development shall give written notice to the petitioner of the time 
and place of the hearing, which shall be held as soon as practicable after receipt of the petition. At such 
hearing, the petitioner shall be given an opportunity to be heard and to show cause why he should not 
comply with such notice.  


(e) Determination of board of appeals. After the hearing, the board of appeals shall sustain, modify or withdraw 
the petition based upon whether or not there has been compliance with this article. If the board of appeals 
sustains or modifies such notice, it shall be deemed to be an order. Any notice served shall automatically 







 


Page 3 of 6 


become an order if no petition is filed with the department of planning and development within ten days 
after service of the notice. After a hearing in a case when the board of appeals sustains a notice suspending a 
permit required by this article, the permit is deemed to have been revoked. Any permit suspended by notice 
shall be automatically revoked if no petition is filed with the department of planning and development within 
ten days after service of the notice.  


(f) Record of proceedings; appeal. The hearing proceedings shall be summarized and reduced to writing. The 
public record of each case shall contain the written summary, the board of appeals' written findings and 
decision and any notice or order issued in connection therewith. Any person aggrieved by the board of 
appeals' decision may seek judicial review thereof as provided by law.  


(g) Emergency work and orders. Whenever the building inspector finds that an emergency exists which requires 
immediate action to protect the public health or safety, he may, without notice or hearing, issue an order 
reciting the facts constituting the emergency and requiring that such action be taken as he deems necessary 
to meet the emergency. Such emergency order shall be effective immediately notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this article. Upon petition by the affected person, a hearing shall be held as soon as possible. 
After such hearing, the board of appeals shall sustain, modify or revoke the emergency order depending 
upon whether or not the building inspector has complied with this article.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(5)) 


Sec. 10-317. Property maintenance requirements. 


(a) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to promote the general welfare and economic well-being of the city 
by establishing minimum standards for the maintenance of outdoor areas within, and exterior and structural 
components of structures on, lands within the City of Stoughton.  


(b) Applicability. This section applies to all public and private lands and structures located in the city. Nothing in 
this section limits the applicability of other sections of Code to lands, buildings and structures in the City of 
Stoughton.  


(c) Property maintenance requirements. All lands and structures located in the City of Stoughton shall be 
maintained in accordance with the following minimum standards and requirements:  


(1) Drainage. Courts, yards and other outdoor areas shall be graded to divert stormwater away from 
buildings. Ground surface areas shall be sloped away from buildings at a grade of at least one-half inch 
per foot for a minimum of five feet where possible, or by alternative means such as eaves, troughs or 
downspout extensions. Additionally, stormwater shall not be diverted towards neighboring properties.  


(2) [Blank]  


(3) [Blank] 


(2) Grasses and weeds. Outdoor areas shall be kept free from noxious weeds while grasses and non-
noxious weeds must be maintained to a height not to exceed one foot in accordance with subsection 
58-8(6).  


(3) Debris. Outdoor areas and adjacent rights-of-way shall be maintained in a clean and sanitary condition, 
free from debris, rubbish, physical hazards, rodent harborage, infestation, and animal feces.  


(4) Fences and walks. All private fences and walks shall be maintained in a safe and sanitary manner and 
kept in good condition. Additionally, private outdoor walkways serving multiple dwellings shall be kept 
free from snow, ice and other hazardous conditions.  


(5) Exterior surfaces. All exterior surfaces of buildings, fences and other structures that are not inherently 
resistant to deterioration, including but not limited to exterior surfaces of windows and doors, shall be 
treated with a protective coating of paint or other suitable preservative that will provide protection 
from weathering and maintain an attractive appearance. Exterior surfaces treated with paint or other 







 


Page 4 of 6 


preservative shall be maintained so as to prevent chipping, cracking, or other deterioration of the 
exterior surface or the surface treatment and to present an attractive appearance.  


(6) Yard areas. All excavation and land filling operations shall be leveled off to permit mowing of grass and 
weeds. Vacant land shall be planted with grass or otherwise landscaped in a manner that will 
effectively prevent soil erosion, and in compliance with any applicable approved site plan, landscaping 
plan or zoning requirements. Outdoor storage shall conform to the requirements of section 10-318 and 
chapter 78.  


(7) Structural requirements. Every foundation, exterior wall, roof, canopy, overhang and chimney shall be 
weather tight, watertight, rodent proof and shall be kept in good repair, and free from any condition 
that could cause structural degradation of the building. Any sagging or bulging portion of a building 
shall be repaired to a stable condition that is, to the extent practicable, level and plumb. All chimneys 
and breaching shall be constructed and maintained so that they safely and properly remove the 
products of combustion from the building.  


(8) Windows and doors. Windows, doors, and basement hatchways shall be weather tight, watertight, and 
rodent proof, and kept in good repair. All door and window hardware shall be installed and maintained 
in proper working condition.  


(9) Outdoor stairs and porches. Outdoor stairs, porches and appurtenances thereto shall be constructed in 
accordance with applicable building code requirements, and maintained to be safe, in good repair, and 
attractive.  


(10) Outdoor displays and furniture. Street furniture, outdoor display areas and other temporary furnishings 
and material shall be maintained in an orderly and attractive manner, and in conformance with city 
approvals and all other required permits and regulations.  


(11) Waste containers and dumpsters. Waste containers and dumpsters shall be maintained in good repair 
and must be maintained to prevent overflow of waste. Waste container enclosures shall be kept in 
good repair and attractive.  


(12) Vegetative buffers and other vegetation. Vegetative buffers shall be maintained in such a manner as to 
comply with any applicable screening height, density, opacity or other requirements. Vegetative 
buffers and other vegetation shall be trimmed, watered and cared for in such a manner as to stay in a 
healthy and attractive condition.  


(13) Driveway, parking and loading areas. All driveway, parking, loading and outside storage areas shall be a 
paved surface and maintained in accordance with city standards, including any site plan or landscaping 
plan to which the land is subject. Paved surfaces shall be kept in good repair, and shall be repaired or 
replaced when any deterioration occurs to the extent that the rock or sub-base is visible.  


(14) Signage. Permitted signs shall be maintained in good repair, and in conformance with city standards. 
Exterior surfaces of signs treated with paint or other preservative shall be maintained so as to prevent 
chipping, cracking, or other deterioration of the exterior surface or the surface treatment and to 
present an attractive appearance.  


(15) Lighting. Lawful exterior lighting shall be maintained in the permitted and constructed condition and in 
good working order.  


(16) Rodent or insect infestation. Where rodent or insect infestation exists in a dwelling unit or in the shared 
or public parts of any dwelling containing two or more dwelling units, where caused by the owner's 
failure to maintain the dwelling in a rodent proof or reasonably insect proof condition, the owner shall 
be responsible for extermination.  


(d) Responsibility for compliance. Owners of lands in the city shall be responsible for maintaining or causing 
maintenance of their lands in compliance with this section.  







 


Page 5 of 6 


(e) Enforcement and penalties. 


(1) Enforcement authority. This section may be enforced by the department of planning and development 
staff or other person(s) authorized by the common council.  


(2) Opportunity to correct violations. Before initiating legal action to recover forfeitures or obtain 
injunctive or other relief for violations of this section, the department of planning and development 
staff, or other person authorized by the common council, shall notify the owner of the violation or 
violations, and order the owner to correct the violation or violations within such time as the applicable 
city official deems appropriate under the circumstances. The applicable city official may enter into an 
agreement with the owner, providing for correction of the violation or violations. An order to correct 
violations may be appealed to the common council by filing a notice of appeal with the city clerk within 
ten days after the order is issued. An appeal shall stay the order. If the owner corrects the violation or 
violations in accordance with an order or agreement under this section, the owner shall not be subject 
to forfeitures for such violation or violations. If the owner fails to correct the violation or violations in 
accordance an order or agreement under this section, the city may recover forfeitures for each day of 
noncompliance, beginning with the first day of noncompliance. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, 
if the applicable city official determines that the violation or violations presents an imminent risk of 
harm or damage to any historic structure, historic site, or the public health or safety, the applicable city 
official may take immediate legal action to enforce this section, and there shall be no right to appeal 
such action to the common council.  


(3) Forfeitures. Violations of this section shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than $50.00 nor more 
than $1,000.00, together with the costs of prosecution and applicable penalty assessments, fees and 
surcharges. Each day of violation or noncompliance shall constitute a separate offense.  


(4) Injunctions. As a substitute for or in addition to forfeiture actions, the city may institute a court action 
seeking injunctive relief to enforce the provisions of this section. It shall not be necessary for the city to 
take corrective action or prosecute for forfeiture before seeking injunctive relief.  


(5) Corrective action. If maintenance or other work is done to a structure in the City of Stoughton in 
violation of this section, chapter 78, or Title 36 Code of Federal Regulations 67.7, the department of 
planning and development staff may order the owner of the subject land to take such corrective action 
as the staff person deems appropriate to restore the building to the condition it would have been in if 
the work had been done in compliance with this section, chapter 78, and Title 36 Code of Federal 
Regulations 67.7. An order by the department of planning and development staff to take corrective 
action may be appealed to the common council, within 30 days after the order is issued, for a de novo 
review. On appeal, the common council may order the owner of the subject property to take such 
corrective action as the common council deems appropriate to restore the building to the condition it 
would have been in if the work had been done in compliance with this section, chapter 78 and Title 36 
Code of Federal Regulations 67.7.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(6); Ord. No. 0-23-10, § 1, 11-9-2010; Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 1, 5-12-2020) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 1, adopted May 12, 2020, changed the title of § 10-317 from maintenance 
responsibilities of owners and occupants to property maintenance requirements.  


Sec. 10-318. Outdoor storage. 


(a) Applicability. This section applies to all private lands located in the City of Stoughton. Nothing in this section 
limits the applicability of other sections of this Code to lands, buildings and structures in the City of 
Stoughton.  


(b) Restrictions on outdoor storage. No person may store or keep any of the following items outside of a fully 
enclosed structure on any private land in the city, unless outdoor storage of such item is expressly authorized 
by the zoning regulations applicable to such land use:  







 


Page 6 of 6 


(1) Inoperative or unlicensed vehicles, boats or aircraft.  


(2) Junk or machinery.  


(3) Building or construction materials not being used in an active, ongoing and lawful building or 
construction project.  


(4) Landscaping materials, unless those materials are incorporated as an integral part of the landscaping 
on the property, or unless those materials are in the process of being incorporated in an active, 
ongoing and lawful landscaping project.  


(5) Commercial trucks, tractors or trailers.  


(6) Appliances, including but not limited to furnaces, hot water heaters, or water softeners, stoves, 
refrigerators, dishwashers, washers, dryers, except that an operable gas or charcoal grills may be kept 
outside.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(7); Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 2, 5-12-2020) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-6-2020, § 2, adopted May 12, 2020, changed the title of § 10-318 from outdoor 
storage of unsightly items to outdoor storage.  


Sec. 10-319. Abatement of nonconforming uses. 


All dwellings, dwelling units, premises and uses existing on January 23, 1979, which are in violation of any 
provisions of this article are nonconforming uses which shall be abated by February 23, 1979.  


(Code 1986, § 14.17(8)) 


 
2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 


 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 







Page 1 of 8 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Repealing and Recreating Sections 58-1 through 58-13 of the Stoughton Municipal Code  


Chapter 58 
Relating to Public Nuisances 


Committee Action:    
 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2022 Date Introduced:   


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 
1. Chapter 58, Sections 58-1 through 58-13, of the Stoughton Municipal Code is repealed and 


recreated to provide as follows: 
 


Chapter 58 PUBLIC NUISANCES 


Sec. 58-1. Public nuisances prohibited. 


No person shall erect, contrive, cause, continue, maintain or permit to exist any public nuisance within the 
city.  


(Code 1986, § 10.01) 


Sec. 58-2. Public nuisance defined. 


Any of the following is a A public nuisance:   


(a) Any is a act, occupation, condition or use of property which shall continue for such length of time as to:  


(1) Substantially annoy, injure or endanger the comfort, health, repose or safety of the public.  


(2) In any way render the public insecure in life or in the use of property.  


(3) Greatly offend the public morals or decency.  


(4) Unlawfully and substantially interfere with, obstruct, or tend to obstruct or render dangerous for 
passage any street, alley, highway, navigable body of water or other public way or the use of public 
property.  


(b)  A violation of this Chapter 58. 


(c) A violation of Section 10-318. 


(Code 1986, § 10.02) 


Cross reference(s)—Definitions generally, § 1-2.  







 


Page 2 of 8 


Sec. 58-3. Penalty. 


Any person who shall violate any provision of this chapter or permit or cause a public nuisance shall be 
subject to a forfeiture as provided in section 1-3.  


(Code 1986, § 10.08) 


Sec. 58-4. Open cisterns, wells, basements or other dangerous excavations prohibited. 


No person shall have or permit on any premises owned or occupied by him any open cisterns, cesspools, 
wells, unused basements, excavations or other dangerous openings. All such places shall be filled, securely covered 
or fenced in such manner as to prevent injury to any person and any cover shall be of a design, size and weight 
that the cover cannot be removed by small children.  


(Code 1986, § 9.02(7)) 


Sec. 58-5. Abandoned or unattended iceboxes, etc., prohibited. 


No person shall leave or permit to remain outside of any dwelling, building or other structure or within any 
unoccupied or abandoned building, dwelling or other structure under his control in a place accessible to children, 
any abandoned, unattended or discarded icebox, refrigerator or other container which has an airtight door or lid, 
snap lock or other locking device which may not be released from the inside without first removing such door or 
lid, snap lock or other locking device from the icebox, refrigerator or other container unless it is displayed for sale 
on the premises of the owner or his agent and is securely locked or fastened.  


(Code 1986, § 9.02(8)) 


Sec. 58-6 Abatement—Generally. 


(a) Responsibility for enforcement; inspections. It shall be the duty of each department head to enforce those 
provisions of this chapter that come within the jurisdiction of their respective offices, and each department 
head shall make or cause to be made periodic inspections and inspections upon complaint to ensure such 
provisions are not violated. No action shall be taken under this section to abate a public nuisance unless the 
officer has inspected or caused to be inspected the premises where the nuisance is alleged to exist and has 
satisfied himself or herself that a nuisance does in fact exist.  


(b) Summary abatement. 


(1) Order of abatement. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists within the city 
and that there is imminent danger to the public health, safety or peace, the officer may, without notice 
or hearing, issue an order reciting the existence of a public nuisance constituting imminent danger to 
the public and requiring immediate action be taken as the officer deems necessary to abate the 
nuisance. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the order shall be effective 
immediately. Any person to whom such order is directed shall comply with the order immediately.  


(2) Abatement by city. Whenever the owner or occupant shall refuse or neglect to remove or abate the 
condition described in the order, the inspecting officer shall, in his or her discretion, enter upon the 
premises and cause the nuisance to be removed or abated and the city shall recover the expenses 
incurred thereby from the owner or occupant of the premises or from the person who has caused or 
permitted the nuisance.  







 


Page 3 of 8 


(c) Nonsummary abatement by city. 


(1) Order to abate nuisance. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists on private 
premises but that the nature of such nuisance is not such as to threaten imminent danger to the public 
health, safety or peace, the officer shall issue an order reciting the existence of a public nuisance and 
requiring the person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance or the owner of the 
premises where the public nuisance is located to remove or abate the condition described in the order 
by a date specified therein (the abatement date). The order shall be served personally on such person 
and the owner if different, and, at the option of the inspecting officer, the order may be mailed to the 
last known address of the person(s) to be served. If the owner or the occupant cannot be served, the 
order may be served by posting it on the main entrance of the property or by publishing as a Class 3 
notice under Wis. Stats. ch. 985. The time limit specified in the order runs from the earlier of the date 
of posting, service or publication.  


(2) Abatement by city. If the owner or occupant fails or refuses to comply within the time period 
prescribed, the inspecting officer shall enter upon the premises and cause the nuisance to be removed 
or abated and the city shall recover the expenses incurred thereby from the owner or occupant of the 
premises or from the person who has caused or permitted the nuisance.  


(3) Remedy from abatement order. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the 
abatement date, apply to the circuit court for an order restraining the city from entering on the 
premises and abating or removing the nuisance, or be forever barred.  


(d) Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this section shall be 
collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance and, if notice 
to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed against the real 
estate as a special charge.  


(e) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting the 
abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the state. The city 
reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs under 
Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


(f) Other action. If the inspecting officer determines that a public nuisance exists within the city, the officer may 
cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the person causing, permitting or 
maintaining the public nuisance and the owner of the premises where the public nuisance is located.  


(Code 1986, § 10.06; Ord. No. 0-4-2012, § 1, 3-27-2012; Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 1, 1-14-2020) 


Editor's note(s)—Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 1, adopted Jan. 14, 2020, changed the title of § 50-6 from abatement of 
public nuisances to abatement—generally.  


Sec. 58-7. Cost of abatement. 


In addition to any forfeiture other penalty imposed by this chapter for the erection, contrivance, creation, 
continuance or maintenance of a public nuisance, the cost of abating a public nuisance by the city shall be 
collected as a debt from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance, and if 
notice to abate the nuisance has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed against the real estate as a 
special charge.  


(Code 1986, § 10.07) 







 


Page 4 of 8 


Sec. 58-8. Public nuisances affecting health. 


The following acts, omissions, places, conditions and things are specifically declared to be public health 
nuisances, but such enumeration shall not be construed to exclude other health nuisances coming within the 
definition of section 58-2:  


(1) Adulterated food. All decayed, harmfully adulterated or unwholesome food or drink sold or offered for 
sale to the public.  


(2) Unburied carcasses. 


a. Nonhuman consumption. Carcasses of animals, birds or fowl not intended for human 
consumption or food which are not buried or otherwise disposed of in a sanitary manner within 
24 hours after death.  


b. Human consumption. Dead animal carcasses intended for human consumption shall be removed 
within 96 hours of hanging and, to the extent possible, the carcasses shall be hung in a manner to 
minimize public view.  


(3) Breeding places for vermin, etc. Accumulations of decayed animal or vegetable matter, trash, rubbish, 
rotting lumber, bedding, packing material, scrap metal or any material whatsoever in which flies, 
mosquitoes, disease-carrying insects, rats or other vermin may breed.  


(4) Stagnant water. All stagnant water in which mosquitoes, flies or other insects can multiply.  


(5) Privy vaults and garbage cans. Privy vaults and garbage cans which are not flytight.  


(6) Noxious weeds and wild growth. All noxious weeds and other rank growth of vegetation.  


a. Required. The owner of any land within the city shall destroy all noxious weeds and keep mowed 
all grasses, as defined in subsection (b) of this section, which grow on owner's property and on 
any terraces and ditches abutting such property.  


b. Defined. The term "noxious weed" or "weeds" as used in this section are defined by Wis. Stats. §§ 
23.235 and 66.0407, respectively, as amended, and also include those weeds set forth in § 58.11 
and shall also include common ragweed (Ambrosia atemisiifolia), giant ragweed (Ambrosia 
trifida), burdock (Actrium spp.), and Japanese knotwood (Fallopia Japonica); all other plants 
defined as noxious by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources; and all other grasses over 
12 inches in height.  


c. Managed natural landscape areas. Planned natural and native landscape areas grown in a 
managed landscape plan will be allowed and shall not be subject to this section if the areas meet 
and are maintained as per the following criteria: All natural landscape areas shall comply with all 
Wisconsin law and may include native and naturalized plants including, but not necessarily 
limited to, ferns, wildflowers, grasses, shrubs and trees. These areas are to be kept free of all 
"noxious weed" or "weeds" as defined in this section at all times. Natural landscape areas shall 
be set back a minimum of ten feet from all property lines and driveways unless the property is 
abutted by a roadway, fence or similar barrier separating it from adjoining residential properties, 
then the natural landscaping may be planted up to the property line (inside the sidewalk).  


d. Enforcement. Failure to correct a violation of this section may result in nuisance abatement as 
defined in section 58-6 and penalties as provided in sections 58-3 and 1-3.  


e. Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this section 
shall be collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the 
nuisance and, if notice to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such 
cost shall be assessed against the real estate as a special charge.  







 


Page 5 of 8 


f. Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this section shall be construed as prohibiting 
the abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the 
state. The city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, 
damages and costs under Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such 
action.  


g. Other action. If the director of public work determines that a public nuisance exists within the 
city under this section, the director may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of 
this section upon the person causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the 
owner or occupant of the premises where the public nuisance is located.  


(7) Water pollution. The pollution of any public well or cistern, stream, lake, canal or other body of water 
by sewage, creamery or industrial wastes or other substances.  


(8) Noxious odors, etc. Any use of property, substances or things within the city emitting or causing any 
foul, offensive, noisome, nauseous, noxious or disagreeable odors, gases, effluvia or stenches 
extremely repulsive to the physical senses of ordinary persons which annoy, discomfort, injure or 
inconvenience the health of any appreciable number of persons within the city.  


(9) Street pollution. Any use of property which shall cause any nauseous or unwholesome liquid or 
substance to flow into or upon any street, gutter, alley, sidewalk or public place within the city.  


(10) Storage of junk, etc. Outdoor The open storage in violation of Section 10-318 junk, refuse, litter, 
garbage and scrap or waste matter.  


(11) Reserved.  


(12) Animal defecation. All excreted animal feces which is not removed immediately and properly disposed 
of by burial or other suitable sanitary means by the person owning or having control of such animal.  


(Code 1986, § 10.03; Ord. No. 0-20-10, § 1, 11-9-2010; Ord. No. 0-11-2013, 6-11-2013; Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 2, 1-
14-2020) 


Sec. 58-9. Public nuisances offending morals and decency. 


The following acts, omissions, places, conditions and things are specifically declared to be public nuisances 
offending public morals and decency, but such enumeration shall not be construed to exclude other nuisances 
offending public morals and decency coming within the definition of section 58-2:  


(1) Disorderly houses. All disorderly houses, bawdy houses, houses of ill fame, gambling houses and 
buildings or structures kept or resorted to for the purpose of prostitution, promiscuous sexual 
intercourse or gambling.  


(2) Unlicensed sale of liquor and beer. All places where intoxicating liquor or fermented malt beverages are 
sold, possessed, stored, brewed, bottled, manufactured or rectified without a permit or license as 
provided for by chapter 14.  


(3) Continuous violation of city ordinances. Any place or premises within the city where city ordinances or 
laws relating to public health, safety, peace, morals or welfare are openly, continuously, repeatedly 
and intentionally violated.  


(Code 1986, § 10.04) 


Sec. 58-10. Public nuisances affecting peace and safety. 


The following acts, omissions, places, conditions and things are declared to be public nuisances affecting 
peace and safety, but such enumeration shall not be construed to exclude other nuisances affecting public peace 
or safety coming within the definition of section 58-2:  







 


Page 6 of 8 


(1) Signs, billboards, etc. All signs and billboards, awnings and other similar structures over or near streets, 
sidewalks, public grounds or places frequented by the public so situated or constructed as to endanger 
the public safety.  


(2) Illegal buildings. All buildings erected, repaired or altered in violation of the provisions of chapter 10 
relating to materials and manner of construction of buildings and structures within the city.  


(3) Unauthorized traffic signs. All unauthorized signs, signals, markings or devices placed or maintained 
upon or in view of any public highway or railway crossing which purport to be or may be mistaken as 
an official traffic control device, railroad sign or signal or which because of its color, location, brilliance 
or manner of operation interferes with the effectiveness of any such device, sign or signal.  


(4) Obstruction of intersections. All trees, hedges, billboards or other obstructions which prevent persons 
driving vehicles on public streets, alleys or highways from obtaining a clear view of traffic when 
approaching an intersection or pedestrian crosswalk.  


(5) Tree limbs. All limbs of trees which project over a public sidewalk which are less than nine feet or which 
are less than 14 feet above the surface of the street.  


(6) Shrubs. All shrubs or plantings adjacent to sidewalks which encroach the sidewalk.  


(7) Hazardous trees. All trees which are a menace to the public safety or are the cause of substantial 
annoyance to the general public.  


(8) Dilapidated buildings. All buildings or structures so old, dilapidated or out of repair as to be dangerous, 
unsafe, unsanitary or otherwise unfit for human use.  


(9) Wires over streets. All wires over streets, alleys or public grounds which are strung less than 15 feet 
above the surface thereof.  


(10) Obstructions of streets and excavations. All obstructions of streets, alleys, sidewalks or crosswalks and 
all excavations in or under the streets, alleys, sidewalks or crosswalks, except as permitted by 
ordinance or which, although made in accordance with such ordinances, are kept or maintained for an 
unreasonable or illegal length of time after the purpose thereof has been accomplished or do not 
conform to the permit.  


(11) Unlawful assembly. Any unauthorized or unlawful use of property abutting on a public street, alley or 
sidewalk or of a public street, alley or sidewalk which causes large crowds of people to gather, 
obstructing traffic and free use of the streets or sidewalks.  


(12) Flammable liquids. Repeated or continuous violations of ordinance or law relating to the storage of 
flammable liquids.  


(13) Unsafe sidewalks. The allowing of rainwater, ice or snow to fall from a building or structure upon a 
sidewalk without taking precautions to safeguard the public in using such sidewalks.  


(14) Barbed wire fences. Barbed wire fences located within three feet of a public sidewalk.  


(15) Hedges, bushes and trees. Any hedges, bushes, or trees that have become overgrown, decayed or out 
of ordinary maintenance. Hedges or bushes shall be cut or trimmed as often as necessary to maintain a 
neat and attractive appearance.  


(Code 1986, § 10.05; Ord. No. 0-5-2012, § 1, 3-27-2012; Ord. No. 0-10-2016, § 1, 6-28-2016) 


Sec. 58-11. Reserved. 







 


Page 7 of 8 


Sec. 58-12. Diseased, infested or dangerous trees or shrubs a nuisance. 


(a) Public nuisances declared. The continued existence of injured or diseased or infested trees or other plantings, 
and the failure to properly treat or control the same which is likely to cause the spread of disease or 
infestation or endanger persons because of the deteriorated condition, is hereby declared to be a public 
nuisance requiring abatement.  


(b) Abatement. 


(1) Order. Whenever the director of public works shall find on examination that any tree or shrub or part 
thereof growing or located upon private premises is a public nuisance as defined in this section, he or 
she shall notify the owner, or if the owner is unknown and there is a tenant or operator occupying said 
property then to such tenant or operator, in writing that the nuisance must be sprayed, removed, or 
otherwise abated as directed in the order within the time specified, which shall not be less than 14 
days unless the director of public works shall determine that immediate action is necessary for public 
safety or health. The order shall be served personally on the owner, or if the owner is unknown and 
there is a tenant or operator occupying said property then to such tenant or operator, and, at the 
option of the director of public works may be mailed to the last known address of the person(s) to be 
served. If the owner or the occupant cannot be served, the order may be served by posting it on the 
main entrance of the property or by publishing as a Class 3 notice under Wis. Stats. ch. 985. The time 
limit specified in the order runs from the earlier of the date of posting, service or publication.  


(2) Abatement by city. If the owner of such premises or occupant if different from owner refuses or 
neglects to comply with the notice to abate a nuisance under this section within the time specified, the 
director of public works shall cause the nuisance to be sprayed, removed or otherwise abated and shall 
report the expense thereof to the city treasurer, who shall enter it as a charge against the property 
upon which the tree or shrub is located.  


(3) Appeals. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the abatement date, apply 
to the circuit court for an order restraining the city from entering on the premises and abating or 
removing the nuisance, or be forever barred.  


(4) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this article shall be construed as prohibiting the 
abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the state. The 
city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs 
under Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


(5) Other action. If the director of public works determines that a public nuisance exists within the city, the 
director may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the person 
causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the owner or occupant of the premises 
where the public nuisance is located.  


(c) Dangerous trees. 


(1) Definition. "Dangerous tree" means any tree which, in the opinion of the director of public works, is so 
decayed or injured, or which for any other reason is likely to fall upon any sidewalk or street or other 
public property.  


(2) Notice to remove. Whenever the director of public works shall have notice of a dangerous tree which is 
likely to fall, it shall give notice in writing to the owner of the land where such tree is located, requiring 
the owner to remove the tree within 14 days after receiving the notice. The notice may be served 
personally on the owner or agent thereof or by registered mail addressed to the owner or agent.  


(3) Appeals. Any person affected by an order under this section shall, prior to the abatement date, apply 
to the circuit court for an order restraining the city from entering on the premises and abating or 
removing the nuisance, or be forever barred.  







 


Page 8 of 8 


(4) Abatement in accordance with state law. Nothing in this article shall be construed as prohibiting the 
abatement of public nuisances by the city or its officials in accordance with the laws of the state. The 
city reserves all rights to commence an action for abatement of the public nuisance, damages and costs 
under Wis. Stats. ch. 823, and to enforce any judgment entered in such action.  


(5) Other action. If the director of public works determines that a public nuisance exists within the city, the 
director may cause to be issued and served a citation for violation of this section upon the person 
causing, permitting or maintaining the public nuisance and the owner or occupant of the premises 
where the public nuisance is located.  


(6) Authority to assess costs. The cost of the abatement or removal of a nuisance under this section shall 
be collected from the owner, occupant or person causing, permitting or maintaining the nuisance and, 
if notice to abate the nuisance, if applicable, has been given to the owner, such cost shall be assessed 
against the real estate as a special charge.  


(Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 3, 1-14-2020) 


Sec. 58-13. Interference prohibited. 


No person shall prevent, delay or interfere with the director of public works, or designee, or any of his/her 
agents or employees while they are engaged in the performance of duties imposed by this chapter. No person shall 
refuse to permit the director or employees of the department of public works to enter upon his premises at 
reasonable times to exercise the duties imposed by this section or permit any public nuisance to remain on any 
premises owned or controlled by him when ordered by the director of public works to abate such nuisance.  


(Ord. No. 0-27-2019, § 4, 1-14-2020) 


 
2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 





		12 Public Safety - Minimum Maintenance Ordinances

		12a 3SL5545-Ordinance - Chapter 10  (1-7-2022)

		ARTICLE VII. MINIMUM MAINTENANCE STANDARDS AND OUTDOOR STORAGE

		Sec. 10-311. Penalty.

		Sec. 10-312. Purpose.

		Sec. 10-313. Definitions.

		Sec. 10-314. Applicability.

		Sec. 10-315. Inspections.

		Sec. 10-316. Enforcement and appeals.

		Sec. 10-317. Property maintenance requirements.

		Sec. 10-318. Outdoor storage.

		Sec. 10-319. Abatement of nonconforming uses.





		12b 3SM8552-Chapter 58 Ordinance (1-7-2022)

		Chapter 58 PUBLIC NUISANCES

		Sec. 58-1. Public nuisances prohibited.

		Sec. 58-2. Public nuisance defined.

		Sec. 58-3. Penalty.

		Sec. 58-4. Open cisterns, wells, basements or other dangerous excavations prohibited.

		Sec. 58-5. Abandoned or unattended iceboxes, etc., prohibited.

		Sec. 58-6 Abatement—Generally.

		Sec. 58-7. Cost of abatement.

		Sec. 58-8. Public nuisances affecting health.

		Sec. 58-9. Public nuisances offending morals and decency.

		Sec. 58-10. Public nuisances affecting peace and safety.

		Sec. 58-11. Reserved.

		Sec. 58-12. Diseased, infested or dangerous trees or shrubs a nuisance.

		Sec. 58-13. Interference prohibited.







